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Good afternoon, I’m Don Guzman the Chair of the
(gavel)...
CHAIR GUZMAN.
t,
Economic Developmen Energy, Agriculture, and Recreation Committee. Today is
March 1, 2016. Before we begin, I would like to introduce the Members that we have
on the Committee starting with our Vice-Chair of the Committee, Elle Cochran. Good
afternoon.
...

VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Aloha. Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Don Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Aloha. Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Stacey Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Aloha, Chair.
CHAIR GUZMAN: And Mr. Mike Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aloha, Chair. Good afternoon.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Good afternoon. On the... I believe listed as excused is Mr. White and
joining us later is Mr. Riki Hokama. We have for our Administration the Director of
Parks and Recreation, Kaala Buenconsejo. Good afternoon. And we have also a
representative from Managing Directors Office, Wendy Taomoto.
MS. TAOMOTO: Good afternoon.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Good afternoon. God my throat’s.. .and we have for our Staff, our
Legislative Attorney, Sharon Brooks. As well as our Secretary, Pauline Martins. We’re
gonna go ahead and check in with our District Offices starting with Hana Office, are
you present?
MS. ZULUETA: Good afternoon, Chair. It’s Kit Zulueta from the Hana Office.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Good afternoon, Ms. Zulueta. And then now we’re gonna go ahead and
turn onto Lanai Office, are you there?
MS. FERNANDEZ: Good afternoon, Chair. This is Denise Fernandez on Lanai.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Good afternoon, Ms. Fernandez. In Molokai Office, are you there?
MS. ALCON: Good afternoon, Chair. This is Ella Alcon on Molokai.
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CHAIR GUZMAN: Good afternoon. Before we begin, I’d like to let everybody know
that if
you’d like to testify, please sign up at the lobby. Once you go to the podium, you’ll
have three minutes to testify. When the red light goes on you should seize at that
time. Please state your name and/or organization in which you represent. We’re
gonna, oh... we have also from Corporation Counsel, Deputy Corporation Counsel,
Jerrie Sheppard. Starting off with our first testifier.
MS. BROOKS: The first testifier in the Chamber is Tama Kaleleiki.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Very good.
COUNCILMEM3ER COUCH:: She got it right?
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Yes.

BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY...

MR. KALELEIKI:
(spoke in Hawaiian)... Greetings to all and my name is Tama Kaleleiki.
I’m reading from the EAR-43.
Mines is more of a saying thank you to
Wendy... Mrs. Wendy Taomoto and to Mrs. Tanya Lee-Grieg. In January the 4th,
having help with the fencing on the perimeter of Malu Ulu Olele Park to help us,
as
community and as church, comprehend what has been going on and what will be
happening with the AIS. With Wendy and Tanya, it became really wonderful to have
hands-on in them explaining why we will be having the fence and what is AIS.
So
what was so conundrum, for many years, they’ve chopped it down where we could
really comprehend and actually give our support to the County. Our proble
m were
individuals from FOM. They spoke for these two entities and found out that
it was
totally, totally different. I’m so glad that they came and helped us because
it felt on
the end almost sabotaging the project at hand. I also have to thank you, Counc
ilman
Don Guzman, and to, Councilwoman Elle Cochran, for keeping this transpa
rent for
us, the community. And again, we’re here to support the project, althoug
h, I really
believe, again and I’ve said this before that you need to change gears
.

.

.

--

MS. BROOKS: Thirty seconds.
MR. KALELEIKI: --in having other individuals take operation. Be it new
staff but having
FOM involved but with other individuals helping, I think more with their commi
tment
to this project. Again, we say thank you to Wendy and Tanya, because when
it came
to the church, our stone wall properties, it became
--

MS. BROOKS: Three minutes.
MR. KALELEIKI: --very necessary. Thank you very much.
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CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you very much.
Seeing none...

Any questions or comments for the testifier?

VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Wait.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Oh.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Yeah, Chair.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Ms. Cochran?
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN:
here.

Thank you.

And thank you, Tama.

Aloha, thank you for being

MR. KALELEIKI: Hi. Welina.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: When you speak of we, you’re speaking on behalf of?
MR. KALELEIKI: Community. Community especially because I’m the one that is hands-on,
I’m the one that’s talking to the families that come to the cemetery. I’m there three
times out of the week. It’s my love. My kuleana to take care of our families. And it
became really important, when this fence went up they were mad. They came in just
like, what’s going on? But it was through the help of Tanya and Wendy that we could
come and actually explain to our kupuna what was happening. What is an AIS. So it
really, really made a big difference on having people be hands-on with community.
Especially with this area, church, which Walola, if you don’t know, is the oldest
church on this island. And it’s also.. .we concern.. .we consider it the piko of Mokuula.
Or we know it fondly as Kaluaehu, the residents of this area. So it was really
important, January 4, 2016, that Wendy and her staff along with Tanya came to help
us comprehend. Because it was a lot of animosity already. And I just can’t thank you
enough for helping us comprehend. And, you know, at least we had someone to go to.
Instead of talking to the other, FOM, where you guys gave us the Qs and As and it was
just spot on. So again, thank you.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Thank you, Tama. And when you mention hands-on, you had
to.. .you were able to participate? I believe...
MR. KALELEHU: Yeah. We had our culture advisor or my cousin Aulli Mitchell, had shared
that culture monitoring. And his colleague is Tanya. And so I went and saw what
they’d done and it’s really, really interesting to see the process of archeology. And I
had the chance to shadow Katie and Tanya on their works. And it was awesome. I
hope more people get involved.
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VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN:
you, Chair.

Thank you.

Again, thank you for your time, Tama.

And thank

CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you. Is there any other further questions from the Members?
Seeing none, thank you very much, Tama.
MR. KALELEIKI: Mahalo.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Any...

MS. BROOKS: There are no further testifiers in the Chamber.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. I’m gonna to turn to our District Offices. In Hana Office, is there
anyone wishing to testify?
MS. ZULUETA: Chair, there’s no one waiting to testify in the Hana Office.
CHAIR GUZMAN: In Lanai Office, is there anyone wishing to testify?
MS. FERNANDEZ: There is no one waiting to testify at the Lanai Office.
CHAIR GUZMAN: And Molokai Office, is there anyone wishing to testify?
MS. ALCON: There’s no one here on Molokai waiting to testify.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Thank you, ladies, very much. At this time Members, without any
objections, I’d like to close public testimony.
COUNCILMEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you. Public testimony is now closed.
END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY...

EAR-43

MOKTTULA ISLAND AND MOKUHINIA POND (LAHAINA) (CC 15-238)

CHAIR GUZMAN: Members, turning to our first item on today’s agenda EAR-43. The
Committee is in receipt of the following: County Communications 15-238, from the
Council Chair, relating to the matters of the restoration of the Mokuula Island and
Mokuhinia Pond in Lahaina. Correspondence dated November 25, 2015, from the
Mayor, relating to fencing on the Ecosystem Restoration Project. The Committee will
receive a presentation from Mr. Paul Klieger, a Ph.D. relating to the professional
restoration standards and restoration of the Mokuula Island and the Mokuhinia
Pond; and we will discuss this matter on the floor. We may also go into executive
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session if needed. Members, at this time the Council has touched on the examination
of Mokuula Island and the Mokuhinia Pond restoration project. Which has been
underway for over a dozen years. On the one-acre island, now buried under the
abandoned baseball field, at the park in Lahaina it’s also surrounded by the large
spring-fed pond. The site was the royal residence of the Maui’s high chiefs from the
16th to the 18th centuries. And it was the capitol of the Kingdom of Hawaii, where King
Kameharneha III ruled from 1837 to 1845. It is also the burial site of the several
Hawaiian royals. The properties was abandoned in the early 1900s and the ponds
were filled with the coral rubble. It was then recently rediscovered as a significant
ecological site in 1993. friends was established in 1995 to restore the site including
the wetland ecosystem surrounding the island. Friends received its nonprofit status of
501fc)(3) in 1997. In 1994, the Mokuula complex was placed on the Hawaii State List
of Historical Sites. And in 1997 it was added to the National Register of Historical
Places. On December 1, 2000, the Council approved by Resolution 00-171 and 00172 the grant of a license and lease to the nonprofit Friends of Mokuula to occupy the
County real property located at the corner of front Street and Mokuhinia Place in
Lahaina. On January 2, 2002, the County granted to fOM, number 1 a lease for 35
years over a parcel of approximately 2 acres for rent of $1 per year. And number 2, a
license for 20 years over a parcel of approximately 2.7 acres for rent for $1 per year.
The lease requires that the Friends, to use the property solely to restore and preserve
the Mokuula and the Ponds of Mokuhinia. At our meeting on September 15, 2015
our Committee heard a presentation from the nonprofit about the restoration efforts
underway.
Under EAR, item EAR-2 concerning the parking concessions on the
property. At that meeting the... and other subsequent meetings, this Committee heard
concerns from the public and from Members about the long delay in completing the
restoration projects. I’ve brought this item forward today so that we can learn from
the restoration professionals what the standards are for restoration projects and how
those standards have been applied to the internationally recognized restoration
projects. We also will explore how these standards can be applied to the Mokuula
and the Mokuhinia restoration project. We will start off with a presentation by Dr.
Paul Christiaan Klieger. Mr. Klieger is the anthropologist from Bishop Museum who
rediscovered the royal place. His team discovered the integrity of the site as well as
preserving and protecting the layers of park filled with place over the site in early. the
early 20th century.
Realizing its unique preservation, he wrote the successful
application to nominate the site to the National and State Registers of Historical
Places, thus increasing its protective status under federal law. Dr. lUieger received
his graduate education at University of Hawaii Manoa and began his career as an
anthropologist at Bishop Museum. He went on to curate the Anthropology at Oakland
Museum California Academic of Sciences and California Museum in Sacramento. He
has also authored 15 books including the Mokuula Maui Sacred Isles. He also has
published a definitive biology of King Kamehameha III, and Dr. Klieger works with
indigenous nationals throughout the world including the Tibetan people, California
Indians, and sovereignty movements in Europe and Myanmar, is that correct? Yeah.
Anyways. Without any further ado I’d like to introduce Dr. Paul Klieger to the floor.
.
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MR. KLIEGER: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you for joining us. And...
MR. KUEGER: Aloha.
CHAIR GUZMAN: For your presentation, we’ll.. .youll have the entire floor. And then if you
need access to the PowerPoint
MR. KLIEGER: Thank you, very much. It’s...
CHAIR GUZMAN: Definitely be available with that.
MR. KLIEGER: Yes.
CHAIR GUZMAN: So the floor is yours, Dr. Klieger.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, can he please speak into the microphone please?
MR. KLIEGER: Is that better?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Much.

.BEGIN PRESENTATION...

MR. KLIEGER: Okay. Aloha. Thank you very much for coming here and allowing me the
opportunity to speak to you. I realize that we’re at a turning point with this site and I
think there are some big-picture items I think that the Council wants to see right now
is, you know, where does this site fit in with sort of the world heritage situation. So I
tried my best to really give you two parts, basically, what the international standards
that I’m familiar with and sort of the America standards of restoration, and then some
specifics update about the site itself and hopefully where we’re going. Now let’s see if
this works. For those that are not familiar with it, of course it was the capitol of the
Hawaiian Kingdom from 1837 to 1845. Probably a little bit before as well, because it
was kind of a movable palace, in the sense that people were moving around. More
specifically it was the royal palace and private residence of Kauikeaouli, King
Kamehameha III. In 1916 and really, until the ‘50s, there were various episodes of
filling the site to create a County park. So basically the international standards for
historic preservation are usually in many, many places done at the national level. And
usually with a very visible high-profile political position, a minister of culture, that
level of degree of sophistication. In these countries cultural heritage is considered a
strong component of their own national identify and therefore a national resource. It’s
something to be proud of and, of course, it attracts tourists and visitors and all kinds
of things. In these cases, where you have a national control, the artifacts are almost
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always the property of the state and curated by state employees. Often in conjunction
with national universities.
So you have at all levels ideally, a high level of
professionalism, and higher education is an integral component of projects that are
historical resources for the state. These standards have ideals to preserve portions of
the site for interpretation in the future and as technology advances. So very rarely do
you see a complete restoration of any particular site. You always want to keep really
the bulk of it in some sort of deep ceded preservation for the future and future
generations. Here are some examples of this sort of highest level of historic sites, the
Basilica of the Holy Sepulcher in Jerusalem, built by Constantine I in the 4th century.
The site of Jesus’ Crucifixion and Resurrection.
Also the tomb of Adam and
considered throughout the.. .until the middle ages, really the piko of the Christian
world. It was the center of the world. And under one of these domes actually there is
a... there’s a ampoules which is.. .which marks the exact center. It’s still there. So
these sorts of sites take extraordinary resources to maintain and this one particular
site, there are several entities that have kind of a peaceful partnership, I suppose, over
the last few hundred years. The Franciscan’s have a chunk. The Orthodox Church
has a chunk of responsibilities and so on. And they all somehow manage to work
together to keep the place open and to keep it restored. Okay. Another good example,
I think, is the Roman Forum. And here you have at least 2,000 years, maybe 2,500
years of history that’s exposed. You know, most of it’s marble. But again, you have
this constant problem whenever it rains, things appear. You have to deal with it and
as you can see, just in this photograph you have many layers of habitation. You have
the early republic. You have the Empyreal Period. You see the Romanesque Period
buildings and the Renaissance. And you have to decide how to focus on your
resources for... to include all of these particular periods. This has implications for
Mokuula. Another example is the Basilica of St. Denis, outside of Paris. Which is the
burial place of the kings of France. It was built... really it was a Celtic religious site.
Became a Roman temple when St. Denis the martyr became associated with it, there
were some early Christian churches, several episodes of Christian churches. And it
also became the first Gothic church. And, you know, the national holy place for the
burial place for the kings of France. So you can see where I’m leading here. Again, a
very difficult management situation because you want to be able to show at least
examples of all of those layers of habitation, so to speak. And still maintain, you
know, a religious.., it’s still an active church. It’s a very holy place for those that revere
the kings of France. Of course, it was kind of trashed during the revolution. But, you
know, they’ve managed to deal with that mitigation issue. One of my favorites of
course, since I work in Tibet as well, is the Potala Podrang or Palace in Lhasa. It was
in pretty good shape when Tibet was occupied in 1950s by the People’s Republic
of
China. But the People’s Republic of China has put a lot of money, millions and
millions of dollars into restoration of this very, very large place. And of course that
comes with, sort of a political price in a sense. Some of the benefits
of state
sponsored, and by state I mean a nation, national-sponsored restorations. There’s
no
confusion as to the ownership of the artifacts or historic properties, they belong
to the
nation. And so you have very active eminent domain laws to acquire the properties.
If
they’re not already public lands. So hinted at it before as sort of cultural patrimony,
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the site’s artifacts tend to represent, or can be used to represent the genius
of a
particular nation state.
Serving as an agency to maintain pride in historical
achievements of the state, increase national loyalty, and this concept of ethos.
One
thing that’s really beneficial, of course, is the long-term institutional stability of
state
agencies directly benefits the preservation and maintenance of these historic sites
and
their artifacts. Such stability provides for the development of a professional career
staff in historic preservation and the highest standards of academic competence
and
education at the university level. So again it’s not kind of a private sector that
we’re
dealing with. First and foremost these nations that have this sort of preserv
ation
ideals, it’s very expensive, extremely expensive. And historic preservation
often
becomes a large component of national budgets and that requires greater genera
l
taxation. Some countries do this through hotel taxes, their value-added tax
or
through income tax. And France and Italy are examples here. Italy is having
a
problem because there is so much in Rome, it is really, really drawing down
the
national budget. So it’s something the laws don’t let you walk away from
these
historic sites as easily.
So as you can imagine innovation and entrepreneurial
inspiration is perhaps suppressed because the private sector is not necess
arily
brought in. And in the worst case site... historic site interpretation and collect
ions can
become occluded with political machinations of the state and result in denying people
s
access to the site. Or even the destruction of the site if it didn’t, doesn’
t fit the
particular political situation. And of course, you look at totalitarian states and
they
have done exactly that. China is an example, the old Soviet Union, more recentl
y Isis’
destruction of the city of Palmyra. Which didn’t fit their, you know, their concep
t of
iconoclastic whatever.
So you tend to have a sort of state policy as far as
interpretation goes. And that is something that can be a problem, definitely.
The
American standards are really quite a bit different. Most sites and the artifac
ts from
those sites are not state supported unless it. they are found on Federal land
or state
land in some cases. So it places the burden on state and local governments
and nongovernment organizations to find these sites, excavate them, and preserve them.
Thus
in the atmosphere there’s a strong tendency towards encouraging public
-private
partnerships. And this is very.., a very strong characteristic of restoration
in the
United States. The benefits of course you have a reduction in taxpayer burden
. And
you have a certain competition because of vendors having to bid and,
you know,
regulators having to assess those vendors. It tends to lower overall costs. So
you have
entrepreneurial incentives and really diverse funding opportunities becaus
e you have
corporations, foundations, the private sector, for various reasons, someti
mes like to be
involved in projects that make them look good. So you have that opport
unity. And
another very important thing in the United States’ system is that you have
an increase
in potential or a potential for diversity of interpretation. And the way that
the historic
preservation laws read, indigenous peoples, Native Hawaiians in particu
lar, and
American tribes often lead projects, restoration projects. And they tend
to be grass
root focused but there are numerous grants available at state and Federa
l level for
that sort of very appropriate type of interpretation. Some of the liabilities,
you do have
a potential for long delays due to increased compliance requirements since
you have to
license members of the... in the public sector. And in cultural resourc
e management,
. .
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you have to have councils to, you know, sort of regulate the firms that are involved in
historical property interpretation. Historic properties and collections often remain in
private hands. And this is kind of a problem when you have a historic site but it’s on
private land. You not necessarily gonna get the artifacts into the state museum. This
can be a problem. And even the state museum might be a private situation like we
have in Hawaii. You tend to have property boundary conflicts because of this concept
of private property and the reluctance of the governments to enact eminent domain.
You have the burden of funding placed on non-government organizations again
through individual corporate gifts, foundation and government grants, and in earned
income. These are all sources of revenue that restoration attempts need to do. Okay.
Getting to particulars, I think many of you know, but just as a review. Most of the
property that we’re talking about is held in trust by the County of Maui, under an
executive order. And it was crown land, ceded lands of course to the State, and then
to the County. And then the southern part of the site went through the Mahele, really
came from the Hoapili’s family, to Lot Kamehameha, Kamehameha V. To the Shaw
family, and then the Shaw family, through sales, primarily through sales to the
County of Maui. The historic site is larger than the current boundaries of Malu Ulu
Olele Park, and includes areas makai of... at Kamehameha Iki Park, Salvation Army,
the development north of Mokuhinia Street, and as such, it’s essential that the
community builds bridges to these various entities. Your neighbors all have to, pretty
much be, you know, on board and supporting the project. Because the site is bigger.
This is a unique place of legitimization for the Hawaiian Kingdom. It’s not the only
place, but it’s what was chosen by Kamehameha I to settle with his kapu wife,
Keopuolani, to have children that would be legitimate to rule the entire kingdom. You
must remember that Maui, and the Kingdom of Maui was defeated by Kamehameha,
so he was the usurper. It was very important to have children by the heirs to the Maui
Kingdom and that was accomplished with Kamehameha III and his brother and sister.
As a religious site, it’s much older of course. And it tends to defy classification. It’s a
unique site and this is one of the questions that all the archeologists and historians
working on this will try to answer. It doesn’t fit the sort of windward luakini, Hale o
Papa kind of dichotomy. This is a very specific unique site. Another feature, site
preservation restoration and interpretation going back 25 years, has always been led
by Native Hawaiian cultural concerns, not by the interest of... for mitigation or
archeological questions. It has been a cultural project from day one. As a residence of
King Kamehameha III, it was the seat of the Hawaiian government, through a critical
consolidation period and the development of a constitutional government. So it’s a
direct ancestor of the county system and the state system of Hawaii. Particulates
continuing, we have at least three occupational areas or foci. And there’s probably
more but this is sort of where we’re getting at right now. We have the Pillani era.
From the 16th century to the 19th century. And this is the seat of the Maui Kingdom.
We haven’t been able to prove it scientifically but it’s highly likely and according to
oral traditions of the Piilani lineal descendents, Piilani himself lived at Mokuula. So
we want to be able to prove that through datable materials and, et cetera. And of
course we have the Karnehameha era, which is really from Kamehameha I, the late
18th century to mid- 19th century and a little bit beyond.
Mokuula was the home of
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Keopuolani, Nahienaena, and Kauikeaouli. Her... two of her children, Kauikeaouli, of
course Kamehameha III. The royal palace was part of this complex known by the
nickname of Hale Piula, or iron roof house. Which was originally built for the crowned
princess Nahienaena. The King himself and Queen Kalama tended to live in a hale
complex that included several houses on the island itself. And those houses were very
close to a coral-block tomb for the royal family. This was a tomb that was built by
Kamehameha III for his sister Nahienaena. And he had his mother and the people
buried over at the first western-style tomb, at Hale Kamani, moved over there. This
was 1837 that residence started. So he lived next to his ancestor’s burial place. And
then we have later on in the southern part of the site, late 19th century to early
20th century, residence on the southern portion of the island, belonging
to the Shaw
family. And we have actually a photograph of the houses there. So, you know,
technically it’s not glamorous necessarily, but it’s part of the interpretive background.
And, you know, so we really, any sort of restoration should not just show one
particular period or the other, but really a multiple of habitation periods. We’ve been
discussing, you know, really how to do this. So the stakeholders, in my opinion,
should include not just the Piilani family descendants, but the Kamehameha/Keoua
family members. We must remember that the crown lands, this was all through the
Mahele. So there are heirs to the crown properties and they are interested in this
property. And, of course, members of the Shaw family who resided on this... the
southern part of this land for a long time. The configuration, the island, and the
pond, is much more complex than the artists’ images that have been circulating
for
years. We suggest that now, I think we’re getting an idea that most of the surface
of
the island continues to be preserved with the grace of the overburdened fill
that
created the park. We might want to show a small segments that show these particu
lar
era features. But I don’t think anyone wants to now, completely excavate the so-call
ed
living surface of mid- 19th century. For one thing it’d be extremely expensive,
another
thing, we don’t know how preserved the entire living surface from that era would
be.
So this is something that we have to proceed with very carefully. One thing that
we
can do is expose the perimeter wall. And surround part of that wall with
the water
and that will give you a nice visual image of Mokuula within its setting.
And again
we... this would crosscut probably all three habitation periods. So thanks
to the
County, after 23 years, a security fence is now encompassing most of the
site. And
that means that a plan to maintain a perimeter on a semi-permane
nt basis,
archeological excavations can go forward. Followed by, you know, really
permanent
exposure of some features that have high integrity, such as rock walls, water
courses,
et cetera. Without the need to cover them, they had been covered in the past
because
we didn’t have a fence, we didn’t have, you know, 24-hour security at
the site. And,
you know, we have, you know, it’s a royal burial site, it’s extremely import
ant from a
security point of view. So in my estimation, both Mokuula and Mokuh
inia are really
ready to be revealed. We couldn’t do this without the fence. So the
County and the
State are being called upon to provide institutional stability for the long-te
rm care and
maintenance of the site with the participation of Federal cultura
l and historic
preservation agencies, in particular National Historic Site regulations,
the National
Park Service. And they have substantial grants, especially for Native
Hawaiians to go
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forward. So right now, an excavation team is in the process of being formed. And
people that really are the foremost experts on the site. In my opinion more corporate
and foundation support needs to be brought in, in this private-public partnership.
And consideration must be given to staff that can help achieve this. Since we’re not
France, or Italy, or China, and are not doing this from a top-down type deal. So
priorities, these again are my opinion. I believe that the site of the royal tomb needs to
be plotted precisely and encircled with an iron fence similar to the Pohukaina Mound
on lolani Palace grounds. These two areas, including Mauna Ala, up in Nuuanu, are
essentially the most sensitive areas of significance to Native Hawaiian peoples of all
known burial sites. That’s my opinion. The site of the tomb at Mokuula needs
immediate attention. It’s probable with a high certainty that portions of the island’s
perimeter wall is intact, especially along Front Street frontage. Exposing this would
provide certainly a clear sign of progress to the community that things are going
forward. And again, both actions may start immediately, without further delay. Now I
wanted to share with you two discoveries. I know many of you have seen these,
they’re two photographs. Just one thing, when I was doing the archival work back in
the ‘90s it was thorough. I went through archives everywhere, but I wasn’t a 100
percent. And we’ve had some discoveries over the last few years recently that have
really changed things. And on the left, we have the first known photograph of
Mokuula. On the left you can see the perimeter retaining wall. A very massive
structure. Perhaps ten courses high of boulders. With the old Wainee Church in the
background. And the loko surrounding that area. This is an arnbrotype, 1851 or so.
The only photograph that I know that was taken during the life of the King. On the
right, this surfaced last year, due to a death in the family. The... actually the president
of the Friends of Mokuula’s mother died and he found this photograph in her album.
It is Hale Piula, the only known photograph of Hale Piula. Without its roof, the roof
blew off in, I believe is 1856. The coral blocks were dismantled in 1858 to build the
first County courthouse at the site of the fort in Lahaina. So this is your direct
ancestor here, on the right is Hale Piula. That... after the capitol moved to Honolulu,
that served as the seat of the royal County of Maui. And it’s very interesting because
with the photograph we’re able to get an idea, of course what it looked like. And that
feeds directly into any sort of restoration potential. Mahalo nui ba. Thank you.
END PRESENTATION...

CHAIR GUZMAN: Very, very informative. Thank you very much.
MR. KLIEGER: Thank you.
CHAIR GUZMAN: I’m gonna open up the floor to any questions that the Members may have,
as well as I would like to invite also the Administration, if you have any questions for
Mr. Klieger, as well. So do you want to start? I’ll start with this end. Ms. Cochran?
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. Chair, I don’t know, do you mind maybe if we
-
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can have departments maybe put some comments out or would you just rather do the
questioning with Dr. Klieger first?
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yeah. I would rather that you

--

VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Just while it’s fresh in our heads. Okay.
CHAIR GUZMAN: --ask questions while it’s still fresh.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Okay. That’s fine.
CHAIR GUZMAN: And then after our questioning with Mr. Klieger we can go into the
Administration side of it. And
--

VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR GUZMAN: --I also invite the Administration to utilize this.. .Mr. Klieger’s resource if
you have any questions.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Okay. Thank you very much. And thank you, Dr. lUieger, for this
wonderful presentation. I know there’s so much more detail you could go into but I
think you’ve laid it out clearly, concisely in laymen’s... our terms, that are easily
comprehended. So thank you for that. I know your deep interest and involvement
with this project from way before I think many of us even knew it existed. And I guess
I’d like you to highlight or elaborate a little more... are your slides numbered?
Anyways it’s in the part that says particulars for site of Mokuula and Mokuhinia loko.
And in that one of the bullet points addresses cultural progress versus the interest of
archeologists. So I was wondering if you could elaborate more what that sentence
means?
MR. KLIEGER: Well I mean actually more of a cultural resource management type of
archeological system where archeologists are tending to focus on the mitigation side of
things. This is not a mitigation, except mitigation, I guess, against any sort of
intrusion by anyone. This is a sort of recognizance and a restoration and stabilization.
So although the rules are the same basically, it’s a different... it’s the perspective itself
has ffipped. We’re looking at this as a cultural resource that needs to be revealed and
not data recovered and put away because it’s gonna be developed. This is the reverse
of that. And I think this is one thing that’s caused a certain amount of delay perhaps
with the County and all the stakeholders is... and, you know, it’s rarely done. It’s
rarely done in Hawaii. It’s more and more there are preservation movements. But
again and, you know, it’s really brilliant that you bring Lahaina Restoration
Foundation people here because they did start with the missionary houses and
structures that, you know, could be restored. This is a little bit more difficult because
we’re gonna have footprints probably, features and not full structures. So we have to
think how far we take that restoration. Do we rebuild the buildings or do we leave the
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footprints, or do we not even bother with that because it’s so dangerous to expose
them? So we’re all trying to grasp the right approach here and to go forward.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. KLIEGER: Does that answer your question?
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Yeah.
MR. KLIEGER: Or help?
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Yeah. And thank you I see that it’s difficult to, I guess.. .because
it’s such a unique situation that we’re in. As you say
--

MR. KLIEGER: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: --it’s not mitigative, it’s restorative and it’s preserving in place so to
speak, I guess, what is there, which literally has been with the fill but as we uncover,
it’s.. .we’re not taking ‘em out to move somewhere else because a hotel’s gonna go
there.
MR. KLIEGER: Right.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Thank God.
MR. KLIEGER: Right.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: And so but thank you for that clarification. I just wanted to

--

MR. KLIEGER: Certainly.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: --know what that meant in little

--

MR. KLIEGER: You’re welcome.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: --more detail. Cultural

--

MR. KLIEGER: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: --versus archeologist. And then.. .let me see here. On the next
page, it’s about the particulars continued, is what you have here. And you laid out
the... and I never thought of it this way, about the different levels of habitation.
MR. KLIEGER: Yeah.

-
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VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: You know

--

MR. KLIEQER: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: --the different eras or what year are we gonna look at? I mean we
all can have a different timeline in mind.
MR. KLIEGER: We’ve never discussed it

--

VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: And is that the goal?
MR. KLIEGER: --as far as I know.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: I never really thought of it that way and that you’ll be.. .1 don’t
know if exposing is the word but, presenting the different, you know, ages or.. and so
you’re saying that exhuming or bringing the wall out in that process will show, I guess
what, different layers of time periods?
.

MR. KLIEGER: Well the wall, the perimeter wall seems to be a feature that ties all the
habitation periods together because that was standing up until 1916 as far as we
know and was visible. And what we don’t know is the earlier periods and I look at the
Piilani period but it’s, you know, perhaps the whole structure is even older than that.
Some of you might recall that we had some carbon dates that were suspiciously very
old. Like, you know, a 1,000 years, 1,200 years old. And we need to verify that
statistically to make it real. We haven’t. we didn’t have the resources to do all the
sort of carbon dating that we wanted to do. So it might even be older than Piilani.
Again this will come out as it’s excavated and we proceed. You know, rather than
having a set vision of what it should look like, I think we have to be very cautious and
proceed based on the information at increment, each subsection that is excavated, we
make the decision. And...
.

.

VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Okay. Well very good ‘cause you mentioned that perimeter wall is
priority. And you believe that at this point in time, it can be... it’s not like the easiest
thing to do but, in a sense, you feel like it’s kind of a for-sure thing, you kind of have
the outline of where that’s gonna be.
MR. KLIEGER: Well

--

VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: And you can get to it.
MR. KLIEGER: --every time that we’ve looked for the wall, we’ve basically found it and that is
all the work that has been done after me. People find segments of alignments that
look very much like this wall that we’re talking about because they fit with the maps,
the superimposed maps, so well. So we think it’s fairly intact and, you know, you
think about a project to fill an 11-acre pond. You’re not necessarily gonna spend all
-
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your labor to knock down walls first, you’re gonna fill up to the point where it’s
covered. You know, and leave the wall intact. There was no need to demolish it.
I... you know, having said that, we also think that maybe parts of the island could have
been scraped into the center or into the loko itself. That seems to be something to
look at because the 1916 island was smaller than the Mahele version. So the island
has shrunk. And I don’t know if that’s a human agency or changing of the pond levels
or.. we need to find that out.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Okay. Well thank you. And also I guess the focus has been about
the Piilani family descendents. But you’re adding in Kamehameha, Keoua
--

MR. KLIEGER: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: --and the other Shaw families.
MR. KLIEGER: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: For coming more present day.

MR. KLIEGER: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: And I.. .you know, thank you for that.
MR. KLIEOER: Sure.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Because I think as this un-layering and, you know, seeing all eras
and time periods, also you gotta look at the family lines that were
--

MR. KLIEGER: Well, you know

--

VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: --during those times.
MR. KLIEGER --and the fact that it was the capitol of the kingdom, I mean you have to
include the Kamehameha family. Who were the inheritors to the Pfllani claims of
Maui. And, you know, they...that is the midl9th century level. Which is of an
enormous significance. You know, I was really.., if I may say, I was very surprised
when I wrote the nomination, that out of four categories of significance, Mokuula and
Mokuhinia were three criteria of significance. Which is extraordinarily rare. So you
have, you know, an individual who is very prominent in national history, you have a
unique religious site, you have all these sorts of things that make it of the highest
level. And it is quite possible, I don’t know if we want to go there, but this is probably
a world heritage site in the future
--

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Wow.

-
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MR. KLIEGER: --as we progress. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: And how would... and for that nomination or... how would you go
about... is... again application and all that?
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yeah. What...
MR. KLIEGER: Well I think...
CHAIR GUZMAN: What does that mean?
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Yeah. What does that...
MR. KLIEGER: A world heritage site is simply, it’s the United Nations has put up some funds
to recognize, around the world, you know, worldwide heritage. It gives a extra degree
of recognition. And I think basically the procedure to have that recognized at that
level again is our State’s major historic preservation. Which is the State Office of
Historic Preservation, they would probably work to make that nomination. And, you
know, find people to help them write it. But they are the ones that actually make
those recommendations, as far as I know.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Okay. Well thank you, Chair. VU let others ask questions. I have
a few more but I can release the floor to others. I see Mr. Couch getting antsy in his
chair so.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yes. Yes.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Don’t want to hog all the time.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Before I yield the floor, can I.. .just a follow-up question?
Office of Preservation, was it ever involved in this project prior to

On the State

--

MR. KLIEGER: Well they’re...
CHAIR QUZMAN: --or at any time period.
MR. KLIEGER:
We consider them a partner all along, the State Office of Historic
Preservation. Partly because, of course, they determine compliance in their permitting
process. But early on, you know, we received guidance, you know, from the local
SHPD Office and the DLNR, really how to go forward on this process. So they are a
very, very interested party.
CHAIR GUZMAN: They’re interested party?
MR. KLIEGER: A totally

--

-
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CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Okay.
MR. KLIEGER: --interested party.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Who’s next? Oh, Ms. Crivello, followed by Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Well, I was

--

VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: No. No.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --gonna, you know, allow Mr.

--

VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --Couch to continue.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Mr. Antsy.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: But I want to thank you for doing... putting this together on
our behalf because I think, you know, it becomes far more significant as far as.. .1
think the Hawaiian Kingdom and I think how it meshes or emerged with the society
that we have today. Especially with the Hale Piula. You know, so it. so for me it’s,
you know, all of us will say our lineage connects somehow or other. Right? That’s
part of our culture. And.. .or to Lahaina, you know, how our lineage connects to Maui
as well as to Lahaina. So I can appreciate when you mentioned earlier that the
restoration takes time. You know, and the first time I heard about Mokuula was
through the late Akoni Akana. And he’s just, you know, like he was blessed with a gift
that you just get completely awed. And the cultural aspect of it and then now you
come with the archeological, I guess, to confirm his vision.
. .

MR. KLIEGER: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Or the vision of those that were involved and are involved
today. So my question is, in your expertise mind, as an archeologist who had worked
towards restoration or hopefully, that this can continue, how long? Or how do you
take or what segments do you start with so that you can say this is happening. This
is real. Yes. They’ve been working on it for over 20 years. And then eventually we
start bringing in other experts to say this is what needs to be done or what have you,
so.
MR. KLIEGER: Well, you know, we’re currently talking about this a lot, actually over the last
year or so. What the timeilne could be, and of course, you know, a lot of it depends on
resources. Again, we have a... at least a major stakeholder which is a private, not-for
profit organization, that has to raise a lot of money. And you don’t want to be... you
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don’t want to go out and start excavation unless you have a certain war chest.
Because it’s very expensive.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yes.
MR. KLIEGER: And, you know, people are highly trained to do this and so they do have to
charge a lot. That is a big problem, and has been, I think. And has incurred a lot of
time over the last 23 years. But having said that, we also have to have a vision of
what it can be and what it can’t be. And I think we all have this mental image of a
wonderful artist that did a wonderful oil painting of a certain beautiful park with lots
of water and a hale and all sorts of things. But again if we are going to give respect to
all eras of habitation on this island, we have to be a little bit more practical with our
vision. I do have some ideas of priority. I think that one thing that absolutely has to
be done and it’s not a really large item, is to respect the area where the tomb was.
This needs to have the same sort of recognition, I think, as Pohukaina on lolani
Palace. Which is, you know, an iron fence, it leaves, and nothing else. And restrict,
you know, kapu signs. Mauna ala is a little bit fancier. Because it’s a, you know, has
a chapel and that sort of thing. We need to do that and then we’re consistent with the
protocols both native as well as State, and probably County on something as
important as this. We pretty much know exactly where that site is.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I was gonna ask you that. Thank you.
MR. KLIEGER: And we don’t tend to make it public for obvious reasons. With security, we
can be a little bit better with this. But I would do that first. And I would also start
with exposing some known segments of the island perimeter wall. With maybe a little
area to... the water will come back. I mean, it will fill with water. And then it’s a
matter of maintenance of the wall. You know, there probably is a certain amount of
subsidence that has happened. And we will need some rock wall experts to help us
with this. But this can also be done, and we’re talking within a year or so, as long as
we get our permits. When we talk about moving infrastructure, then it becomes
extremely expensive. You know, sewer lines and that sort of thing. And that’s
probably later on. But these are some small segments that we can start, almost
immediately. Since the fence is up. So is that good?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: May I follow up with the identification of the place of the
tomb but I guess my question, when it goes back to your archeological research, was
that an open area to where the Piilani and the Kamehameha are buried during that
time?
MR. KLIEGER: Well, it wasn’t

--

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: In your opinion?
MR. KLIEGER: --an open area, it was of the highest kapu.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah. Yeah.
MR. KLIEOER: Traditionally. I mean you had to be, you know, and the kapu traditionally is
still there.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Right.
MR. KLIEGER: So it wasn’t everyone. And... but there are named individuals.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Right. So I ask that because

--

MR. KLIEGER: We do...
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --I’m wondering do we do

--

MR. KLIEGER: Yeah. We do have a list of people.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --the exposure? You know, I mean

--

MR. KLIEGER: We do have a list of people who are buried there.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --dealing with the identification or step one, where we look
at the area of the tombs or what have you. Because when you talk to different
cultural experts say. all. some have the same interpretation and some don’t, you
know.
.

.

.

.

MR. KLIEGER: Of course.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So it’s how you put it all together because as history tells us,
and it’s very kapu. Yeah? On all of this. So if... and I also appreciate you saying that
we are not France, we are not Italy, and we are not China, you know?
MR. KLIEGER: We’re not.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: We are Hawaii. Yeah?
MR. KLIEGER: Exactly.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: We are of the... of our culture which is the Hawaiian. So I
can appreciate that. So you also mention an excavation team is in process of being
formed from people who are the foremost experts on the site. Saying that though, do
we have the funds to bring in these experts?
MR. KLIEGER: I hope so.
-
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Do you know? You... okay. Okay. Okay. Okay.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Hope so.
MR. KLIEGER: Well these are the people that have had and carried the knowledge

--

COUNCILMEM3ER CRIVELLO: Right.
MR. KLIEQER: --for 20 years.. .23 years. And during this time also there were other people
that have worked on the site. We need to pool this knowledge and stop reinventing the
wheel. We pretty much know a lot about the island already and where its boundaries
are. But we need to get to work. We need to keep this group together. You know,
otherwise, you know, we go off and do our own thing.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Right. I heard you mention that, when I first met you, that
the division of trying to resolve things will never. well it will never bring it together.
. .

MR. KLIEGER: Well the site is larger than

--

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah.
MR. KLIEGER: --the parcels

--

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah.
MR. KLIEGER: --that exist and

--

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah.
MR. KLIEGER: --that’s the big problem.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I guess, you know, the dividing the concerns or

--

MR. KLIEGER Right.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --personal or what have you, or entities or what have you.
And it’s quite obvious by looking at the kind of work that needs to be done, it’s the
coming of together.
MR. KLIEGER: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: And that would be your first significant.. .or I would say your
first enticement to get the funders to come in.

-
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MR. KLIEGER: Of course.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Wouldn’t you agree?
MR. KLIEGER: Of course. It has to be...
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: That there’s got to be a unified effort.

MR. KLIEGER: It has to inspire confidence.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Right.
MR. KLIEGER: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO:
questions.

Yes.

Yes.

Yeah.

Okay well I’ll let Mr. Couch ask his

MR. KLIEGER: Thank you.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you, Ms. Crivello. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH:
presentation.

Thank you, Mr.

Chair.

Thank you for a wonderful

MR. KLIEGER: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You mention that you don’t.. .you’re not wanting to uncover the
whole thing. So what kind of degree of uncovering because
--

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --looking at that picture on the left, that kinda appears to be
where the current parking lot is. You’re taking the picture from there?
MR. KLIEGER: That’s the corner actually over by Salvation Army, probably.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. So...
MR. KLIEGER: That corner.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So that’s a huge undertaking to

--

MR. KLIEGER: Oh yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --have taken out all that. So you were saying just a little bit to
-
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expose that wall enough to show that there was a wall there. And because also that,
that’s the portion that was the kapu right?
MR. KLIEGER: Well I.. .what we’re talking about right now is if the wall is really good, we
could go the entire perimeter
--

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Wow.
MR. KLIEGER: --and expose it. And then that relates to Ms. Cochran’s point that I was
making. That we have several layers of habitation. This is a feature that could tie it
all together.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. KLIEGER: And we think that we can start doing this, you know, obviously not in the
parking lot immediately or Salvation Army, because they are
--

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
MR. KLIEGER: --occupied. But in areas that we do have access now and security now, we
can actually start doing that. There’s absolutely no reason except for permitting
process I suppose.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Sure. And how about... how much of the old dig? There was a
dig done several years ago, that they had to cover up I guess. I was able to see it.
MR. KLIEGER: Exactly. Exactly. Well yeah. That. everything that has been excavated
before has been covered. Any artifacts that came out of those test units have been
collected and processed, and are with Friends of Mokilula and/or Bishop Museum.
And whenever a entity is ready to receive the materials from Bishop Museum, we have
assurances that they will be returned. So this is another aspect of things. Is we’d like
to keep the artifacts right here in Maui and Lahaina. And have them available for
local interpretation.
. .

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. And now you bring up another, you know, when we
start getting into the whole funding portion.
MR. KLIEGER: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Is Bishop Museum gonna be heavily involved
MR. KLIEGER: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --in this? Or...

-
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MR. KLIEGER: No. Not at all. We sort of offered them an opportunity but, you know, a long
time ago they sort of got out of the cultural resource management business. It was
very difficult to.. .1 think for them to compete, because they have all these professionals
on staff that do not make themselves competitive in the CRM world. So they are not
particularly interested, I think, except as it relates perhaps to Kamehameha III. If
anything we would like to borrow artifacts from them. Items that the King owned,
Nahienaena owned. And, you know, house them in a museum, perhaps in Lahaina.
That would be wonderful. That’s kind of, you know. (inaudible).
.

.

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. And lastly.
MR. KLIEGER: Yeah?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You were talking world heritage site. Do that... does the whole
site need to be preserved? I mean, what... how much of it would have to be exposed or
preserved, before it would become a world heritage site?
MR. KLIEGER: Well I think that we probably could become one by showing progress right
now. I think we could apply, you know, once we resume excavations and do that sort
of thing. You know, it will show commitment by really all the stakeholders. And I
think that would be a good point. Maybe in a year or so to actually make that
application. I don’t know what their standards are like I did know something about
the national historic sites qualifications. But it’s not so visual, necessarily so visual.
It is what it is. We know what the site served as. And it’s probably amongst the most
significance in all of Hawaii, so.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Wow.
MR. KLIEGER: It’s a extremely high resource for this little place we have.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH:
Hawaii.

Yeah. That’s pretty sobering words, most significant in all of

MR. KLIEGER: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And that’s...
MR. KLIEGER: I mean it sounds like hype, but it’s way up there.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. So what, you know, here’s.. .we’re all about the numbers
here. Any ideas on potential annual cost of, at least, exposing and then preserving?
MR. KLIEQER: Well, I wouldn’t want to give

--

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Ballpark.
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MR. KLIEGER: --Council numbers right without, you know, without really grinding it and
crunching it. I think that if you don’t have to move infrastructure it’s gonna be a lot
cheaper. And if you don’t have to completely restore everything, it’s gonna be a lot
cheaper. I don’t think we have a resource that will allow us for any complete
restoration, because
--

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
MR. KLIEGER: --of the.. .what we’ve learned very recently. You know, that the island itself
seems to be a little compromised and then we have older and newer periods of
habitation that have to be under consideration. So I would think just real ballpark
that maybe 20 percent of the island could be excavated and we keep the rest in
preservation.
That’s a really high standard again.
That’s goes back to my
international standards. You want to keep a big chunk of that available for future
generations. You know, they’ll have technology where they can just take a cosmic ray
picture of the island and show all the features, you don’t have to excavate. The
problem is we also.. .you know, in these we always have to think about preservation.
Because it.. .you don’t want to make a mistake. And the world has a lot of very bad
restorations out there. You know, China is a bad example. In Tibet they’ve rebuilt a
lot of structures. And not necessarily according to, you know, according to their
history, not according to the native people’s history. And this is mostly throughout
Tibet.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
MR. KLIEGER: You know, I’ve had a lot of experience in dealing with that.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Chair.

CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you. I would like to ask the.. .1 guess the Managing Director’s
Office, Wendy Taomoto. If you have any questions for Mr. Klieger? On behalf of the...
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Chair?

CHAIR GUZMAN: Oh. Why don’t we take a, we’re on.. .I’m sorry, Members, we are at bare,
bare quorum. So let’s take a quick break. So that we can, you know, do our thing,
whatever. And then we’ll come back at 3 o’clock.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Okay.
CHAIR GUZMAN: How’s that? Okay. We’re stand in.
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RECESS:

2:50 p.m.

RECONVENE:

3:11p.m.

CHAIR GUZMAN:
(gavel)... The EAR Committee shall now reconvene. I believe we
had.. .who was asking questions the last time that we? Oh yeah. I had requested...
.

..

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: You were the last time.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Ended with Department.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yeah. The Department, did you have any questions for Mr. Klieger that
you’d like to ask? He’s a great resource person that you can get some information
from.
MS. TAOMOTO: Yeah. I wanted to just follow up on something. Wendy Taomoto, County
Capital Improvement Program Coordinator.
On something that was in the
presentation on--let me see--the current assessment page. It was our understanding,
from the County’s perspective in discussions with the State Historic Preservation
Division for our Mokuhinia project specifically, and this is in discussion with the
previous SHPD head archeologist, Theresa Donham, that the excavation work.. any
excavation work, on the island in the pond area, which is the Mokuhinia, cannot occur
until our AIS, which is being done currently by Cultural Resources, is completed, goes
out for the 30-day comment period. SHPD reviews and approves. And it’s determined
to be final. And our understanding on the Mokuula side was that SHPD has
determined that an AIS still needs to be competed because the work done to date is
not a complete AIS, in their opinion. And so, I guess my concern is that I want to
make sure that we’re all on the same page since we have the staff from $HPD available
today, fortunately, to answer that question. If it... the Mokuula/Mokuhinia is ready to
be revealed in the sense that we can start excavations immediately. ‘Cause it was my
understanding that we can’t until an AIS is completed by whomever takes on that
responsibility for the island portion. With an understanding that the County has
taken responsibility to complete the AIS for the Mokuhinia through that contract we
currently have with Cultural Surveys.
.

CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Mr. Klieger, do you have the response, if you can answer?
MR. KLIEGER: Well yes. I’ll defer to the $HPD Officer on this. Yeah. ‘Cause it’s a technical
question and it has to deal with the.. .what we expect or what we should expect to find
in, actually in the pond. And it’s pretty clear to all of us that the island itself has
probably been compromised with the process of filling for the creation of the park.
And so that changes things from our view of the situation in the ‘90s. So I think that
has required the AIS to be reviewed.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay.
-
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MR. KLIEGER: So I’ll defer.
CHAIR GUZMAN: So we have also on the floor Morgan Davis. And she’s with the State
Historic Office of Restoration [sicJ and also Tanya Grieg from the Cultural Surveys, I
believe she is the archeologist that is hired by the County to conduct the AIS. Could
either one of you respond to that question?
MS. DAVIS: Sure thanks. I’m Morgan Davis, I’m...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Talk right into it.
MS. DAVIS: Right into it? Okay. Is this better?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Pick it up.
MS. DAVIS: Alright. Thank you. I’m Morgan Davis. I’m the lead archeologist for the Maui
section for the State Historic Preservation Division. On my left is Tanya Lee-Grieg.
She is with Cultural Surveys Hawaii, and actually doing the archeology work. The
current project is to identify the outside of the island. So it’s a limited scope. Which
is why we’re hearing that it doesn’t apply to the entire project area. This is something
that we are going through an Archeological Inventory Survey plan. And this has also
gone under review by the island Burial Council. So the identification is simply to find
the edges of the island, not to impact the island, and then to withdraw. She files the
report, we have a public comment period, I review the report once it is approved, then
we can go forward and determine what else is required. But the report has not come
to me yet. The survey work is still ongoing.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Do we have any comments or responses by Ms. Davis?
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Ms. Grieg.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Oh, Grieg, sorry. I mean for the State Preservation Office. Do you have
any comment? Oh that was her, sorry.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: That was her.
CHAIR GUZMAN:
today.

That... oh sorry.. .now and then Ms. Grieg?

Craig?

I’m not feeling well

MS. LEE-GRIEG: No I think Morgan covered what the purpose of the current work that we’re
doing is for. So I think, you know, we’re just... so maybe perhaps to give a little bit of
an update. We began the work in the parking lot area and were able to remove some
of the asphalt. And we did positively. .we believe that we positively identified the
perimeter wall within the test units that we excavated. At the completion of that we
.
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backfihled and in... backfihled our test units so that they could be safe and the parking
lot to... could go back into use. And essentially we were waiting on the fencing to go up
around Malu Ulu Olele Park. And now that that has been installed, we are looking to
complete the next step in the AIS work. Which is to identify the perimeter of the
island as well as positively, hopefully, identify the rock wall that served as the
boundary for a holding pond on the Front Street side of Mokuhinia or Mokuula.
With... and so that segment of work, we’re looking to complete that in the park area.
So now that the fencing has gone up and it’s fairly protected, we can proceed with
that. And we are actually looking to begin that work sometime next week.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Department?

MS. TAOMOTO: Yeah. I had a follow-up question for Morgan. I just want to make sure that,
you know, as the project manager, you know, for the County, that I have a clear
understanding of the AIS requirements for the project. And my understanding from
SHPD, before you were involved, was that there was another AIS that was required for
the area which we are calling Mokuula. Because our AIS only came up to the
perimeter wall. That there was another AIS that you guys were requiring for the island
that needs to be submitted before any excavation on the island can occur. Separate
from the Mokuhinia. If I’m understanding it correctly, it’s...
MS. DAVIS: Yeah. Basically the AIS, the one that’s going on right now is our initial
foundation document. So we don’t have that in place yet. We will need that to identify
any other areas, you know, with the scope.. .whatever the scope of the project is.
Whatever it is that everybody’s decided they want to do. It’s still an ongoing process.
MS. TAOMOTO: I think the reason why we’re... because the project was separated when we
engaged with the Army Corps. With the.. .just having the Army Corps’ portion with the
County is the Mokuhinia.
MS. DAVIS: Yes.
MS. TAOMOTO: There’s another portion of the project area which is the Mokuula. And it’s
being treated separately in terms of the archeological requirements.
MS. DAVIS: Yes.
MS. TAOMOTO: So I guess, I wanted to make sure that the Councilmembers understood
that although we, the Army Corps and the County, is completing our Archeological
Inventory Survey requirements for the Mokuhinia ecosystem restoration project, that
is, in my understanding talking to SHPD, separate from if the Mokifula island
restoration wanted to occur on a different path than that. It could but there was this
archeological inventory survey that needs to be completed on the island.
MS. DAVIS: Yes. That’s correct.
-
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MS. TAOMOTO: Okay.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Very good. Is there any further questions? Any other comments
from the panel? Any questions from the Councilmembers? Ms. Cochran?
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And thank you, ladies, for being here. So in
reference to Ms. Taomoto’s question. The current AIS underway does cover Mokuula
also? But.. .yes. .or. anyways.
.

.

.

MS. LEE-GRIEG: The current AIS work only goes so far as to identify the perimeter of the
island. So anytime that we encounter that perimeter, you know, basically it’s to mark
it on the map and say, okay we found it here, and then backfill. One of the concerns,
and this goes back to the Army Corps EA, and one of the concerns was initially there
was a proposal to put together a ten-meter buffer around the island as depicted in the
historic maps. The Mahele am.., the Mahele maps and just the different surveys that
have occurred over the years, taking the more generous or larger representation of the
island.
And then putting a ten-meter buffer around that and monitoring the
restoration of the wetland. SHPD came back and said they were not comfortable with
that. And recommended that an effort be made to positively identify the perimeter of
the island. And so that current work... that recommendation is what lead us to what
we are currently doing today. And so... or this year. And so the scope of the work that
we are doing is simply to identify the perimeter of the island... ground truth it, for lack
of a better word and note that. And it is that boundary or that positively or ground
truthed perimeter of the island. Then in the event that the Army Corps is looking to
proceed, that ten-meter buffer. recommended buffer would be based on something
that has been ground truthed rather than looking at maps from the 1800s and the
1900s. And trying to bring it into our current space. Yeah. So it’s just kind of a little
bit more.
.

.

VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Okay. And.. .okay. Thank you. Yeah. I guess I’m trying to.. .now
that you said that, I see Dr. Klieger wanting to chime in. Because I know that’s one of
his priorities about the wall. So here we are
--

CHAIR GUZMAN: Yeah. Because.. .yeah we just had a...
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN:
don’t mind, have

--talking just exactly that.

So I’m... I would like to, Chair, if you

--

CHAIR QUZMAN: Yes.

.

.

.

(inaudible)...

VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: --Dr. Klieger chime in at this point.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yeah. Mr.. .Dr. Klieger.
.
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MR. KLIEGER: Thank you. I would like to add that our work in the ‘90s, it’s a matter of
scale, in the sense. We did do ground proofing and did come down on this perimeter
wall in four test units. So what Ms. Grieg is doing is refining that sort of perspective
and going from 4 to perhaps 16, increasing a image, if you will, of the perimeter wall.
So the prior work was not entirely based on superimposition of maps but it was
actually ground tested. So I just wanted to make that clarification.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Ms. Cochran?
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: And I guess my follow-up question then actually is in line with
you’re saying you come to it, you identify it, but you’re backfilling it. Because what I
heard from the presentation from Dr. Klieger is... I mean he... number one was the
securing the actual tomb site on the island and also possibly the frontage along Front
Street section of that wall to, I guess expose and keep visible? And if what you’re
doing would allow that to occur right now? Or no? Is there a whole other process and
step you need to go through to make what his vision is, you know, in relation to what
you’re doing? ‘Cause you’re saying you’re seeing it, you’re documenting it, then you’re
backfilling it. So how could we accomplish what he was talking about doing?
MS. TAOMOTO: I can start the conversation because Tanya’s contract technically ends when
she finalizes the AIS report and SHPD accepts it. But upon that acceptance of the AIS
report, by SHPD, after the 30-day public comment period and their 15-day review
time. There has to be a completed, what SHPD is calling a data recovery plan. Which
would include exactly what you’re talking about. The approach that they’re gonna
take with respect to the AIS recommendations, and all the evidence discovered on
whether it be preservation in place or removal for exhibition or so forth and so on. But
the various types of artifacts or features needs to be addressed in this data recovery
plan. And I think that’s where he’s referring to the excavation team is in the process.
The excavation team is the one that is formulating the data recovery plan.
Unfortunately they’re not gonna be able to draw definitive conclusions until Tanya
completes her draft AIS and we have, allow the public to comment on her
recommendations. And await SHPD’s review and also comments of her draft AIS.
Which, I don’t recall her saying it, but we anticipate our public comment period and
SHPD submittal. .1 mean public comment period to start in September. And when we
put this document called a draft Archeological Inventory Survey, out for public
comment, we will.. .we intend to hold a public meeting. As well as update the CRC.
And then with that information we’ll go and submit to SHPD for their 15-day review.
That’s the plan right now.
.

VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Okay.
MS. TAOMOTO: And we’re working towards a completed, accepted final AIS report, in end of
November.
-
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VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Okay. Airight. Well...
MS. TAOMOTO: And then with.. .yeah, with that they can start to develop their data recovery
plan addressing different various features and the timing of the priorities which
includes the timeframes.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Okay.
MS. TAOMOTO: The other thing, if you don’t mind, that I would like to just touch upon
because I did have to come to Council to seek the approval of, is the temporary
fencing. And I know there was a discussion about it being temporary in nature and
what that meant. And I want to make it clear that the request was for a temporary
fencing. And that it wasn’t our intention to leave it there as the permits... permanent
way to secure whatever it is that’s, you know, determined to be.. .whether featured or
excavated or preserved in place. So until we have this public comment period to
determine the significance of some of the features, I’m a little bit uncomfortable saying
the excavation can occur without relooking at how secure this fence is. Because we’ve
had, since our installation, just a few weeks ago, couple breaches. So I think that
warrants another review by the interested parties to make sure that we... before we
start actually excavating or doing data recovery, that we are comfortable with the
means of security that we’re relying on currently which is the temporary fencing.
Yeah. So I’m... if there’s ideas that you guys have in the future we can develop cost
estimates for whatever it is you guys want to move forward with. Thank you.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Ms. Cochran, any further questions?
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: No. I.. .yeah. Thank you, Ms. Taomoto, for the clarifying points.
And... yeah. I’m good at this point. Thank you.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. That was kind of a little disturbing
about the fence situation. You know, if we decided to put in a.. .that iron.. .wrought
iron fence, that’s gonna be real expensive at this point. And I don’t know if it’s gonna
be in the same location as the temporary fence. But saying all of that, how about if we
just.. .would it be cheaper just to hire a guard, you know, during the evenings.., nights
hours, to make sure that the... that fence isn’t being cut into or breached in anyway to
protect the sites? Because the other question I would have, for Ms. Lee-Orieg, you
keep saying you’re gonna dig stuff out, identify it, and backfill it. And then ultimately,
when the real project comes, they’re gonna dig it out again.
-
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CHAIR GUZMAN: Right.

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Why do you have to backfill it?
CHAIR GUZMAN: Right. Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH:

Thank.

CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Couch.
MS. LEE-GRIEG: So the backfiuing, even with the security fencing and even that is a bit
problematic. Backfiuing for archeological work is always a safety issue. Having open
square pukas in the ground. And even that if when we do identify the perimeter of the
island and we have open holes and it’s not quite as secure as we would like it to be,
there is that also extended risk with having open excavations and potential for looting
and things like that. So it is a general practice for us to always backfill in order for
safety reasons as well as protective reasons. With that said, our grid or our excavation
grid is set up on using the previous Bishop Museum excavation grid and their
controls. So whether.. .while it may be a little bit extra work, our units are 50
centimeters by 50 centimeters square. They’re rather small. Probing
--

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MS. TAOMOTO: --like a foot and a half.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
MS. TAOMOTO: Yeah. So we’re not doing these very large excavations. We’re trying to limit
our impact while still being able to carry out what we need to do. And so that’s one of
the reasons as well. It...so in the future using the previous controls that have been set
up during Bishop Museum’s great work, it.. .1 would hope that it wouldn’t be as
problematic to reidentify the areas that we’ve been able to locate.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. And that makes a little bit more sense, Mr. Chair. You
know, a 20... 50 centimeter hole is 24 inches right? Or 26 inches. So that’s not a very
big hole so yeah, you’d want to cover it up so people... you won’t be able to see it. But
as far as the fencing or where you’re anticipating the rod iron fence versus the existing
fence?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Well put it this way.. .if I may
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yes.
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MR. KLIEGER: Mr. Chair? The whole site.. .1 mean the area encompassed by the temporary
fence, is approximately ten acres. The area that we’re looking for to enclose with an
iron fence is approximately 10 by 20 feet.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh.
MR. KLIEGER: So it’s a much smaller area and much doable. I sorta costed, you know,
potential iron fencing out. I guess what the question is, is that will the permitting
process allow us to construct over this site to do something that increases
preservation. Or do we, you know, this is a discussion of course with SHPD which is
our main advocate for preservation. And so
--

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Sure
MR. KLIEGER: --this a discussion that needs to happen. But I just wanted to give you an
idea of the scope
--

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. KLIEGER: --of the iron fence is

--

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah. That...
MR. KLIEGER --much, much smaller.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Much, much smaller.
MR. KLIEGER: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And one more question-CHAIR GUZMAN: Yes, Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --Mr. Chair. If that’s the case, a much smaller fence, for
securing that preservation, how are you gonna... I mean once you start doing the
actual work, whomever is going to do the work. How are you gonna secure the site
when it’s gonna be preserved? How is that gonna happen?
CHAIR GUZMAN: Mr.... Dr. Klieger?
MR. KLIEGER: If. yeah. If I may answer that. That is kinda the elephant in the room
because again, as Ms. Lee-Grieg has pointed out, most of us are used to backfiffing a
site and then going on and doing something else, and in this point, it’s flipped. We are
exposing things and we have to have the expertise from restoration professionals, how
to stabilize and to keep the area open. And we probably also need some advice from
.

.
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security people how to prevent. to lower the liability that people will fall in and that
sort of thing. These issues have.., are.. .we’re cognizant of these issues but they have
not been, you know, gone to the point of detail. But again, the project is perhaps not
to reveal all the features, as I had mentioned, but certainly some features will
hopefully be revealed. As we get an idea and a clearer picture of the perimeter and
what some of these other features are then we’ll be able to determine, you know, with
public input of course, what is likely to be visible. And I think that’s a really
important point to keep in mind because we have a very unique situation as far as
most sites go. We have had passive preservation by the fact of the creation of the
park. And now we’re going from this very secure situation to one where there’s
questions like this. And we’re all very careful about doing this ‘cause it is such a
resource.. .cultural resource, for many, many groups of people. So I just wanted to
add that. Thank you.
. .

CHAIR GUZMAN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Any further questions Mr. Couch? I have a few questions that I haven’t
been able to ask yet, so far. But just getting back to Dr. Klieger, you referenced a few
times you say we. So are you in the process, or are you with Friends of Mokuula
now? Or what is the status?
MR. KLIEGER: Well that’s a very good question. And thank you for the opportunity to ask
that. I am right now a concerned party with a certain amount of expertise based on a
lot of work and my recent biography of Kamehameha III. And I feel a passionate
commitment to making this project go forward, in the most professional and
reasonable length of time. I would like to see it done in my lifetime. So I have been
helping in kind of a pro bono.. there is a small grant to cover my expenses through
Friends of Mokuula and I’m very appreciative of that. But I would probably be here
on my own in any case because of perhaps what I know about this place. So at this
point I’m not under any employment consideration, or any contract. And I can say,
pretty much, what I want. And really I would like all the stakeholders to get together
and go forward. That’s basically it. Thank you.
.

CHAIR GUZMAN: Just... Members, I.. .you know, my perspective it seems as though, there
really need to have a vision or at least a. some priorities or a list of goals that need to
be done on the excavation side of it. You’ve got so many moving parts. And it just
seems like there’s not this master plan that we have a leader or team captain on the
excavation team putting it together. And with Mr.. Dr. Klieger’s experience and in
depth nationwide... internationally and his ability to seek out world recognition and
possibly getting some extra additional funding, I really think we should, as a
Committee, start looking at some kind of funding nexus to try to encourage Mr. Klieger
to stay here in Maui and help out on this project. And if that needs making an
amendment to the concession, which is the next item, to make that happen, I think
.

.

. .
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that’s a move in the right direction. Of course FOM would.. .1 would see them as being
still in charge of the cultural aspect and working with Dr. Klieger. Who would then be
in charge of the excavation or at least our personal contact, someone that could
explain things to this Committee on a more, I guess, technical basis. And have that
type of priorities listed and we could probably follow through with those things. The
other question I had was the.. .you mentioned the excavation team. Is... it’s currently
being put together? So what happened in the last 23 years? Was there no excavation
team? And... that’s, you know...
MR. KLIEGER: Well thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR GUZMAN: At some point you were involved with the project.
MR. KLIEGER: Right.
CHAIR GUZMAN: And then I didn’t get the... and then you went into your international
projects and now you’re currently working pro bono here and there, with FOM? I’m
not quite following that timeline.
MR. KLIEGER: Okay. Well what I meant about this team is that we are trying to get the
players in position to do the data recovery plan as outlined and anticipated by SHPD.
And again, it involves people that have vast knowledge of the whole project over the
last 23 years. These people have been made available by the fact that they’ve retired
recently, like myself. And have some time but still have some capacity, I suppose, to
do things. So, you know, those sorts of resources are great I think. Again to build
upon the work that’s already been done. Because, of course, going back to the very
beginning, it’s been County money. And we want to be as efficient as possible. And as
a full generation has gone by, we want to be able to bring in of course the younger
people to educate as well as to use their skills to do much of the work but also
maintain the knowledge that we have at, sort of the senior level. So we’re trying to
form a team that will be a working team that will go forward with the compliance issue
of course. And hopefully funding will be there to support that.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you, Dr. Klieger. I think that... but what’s important is the... or at
least what was refreshing in my mind was the fact that you mentioned these priorities.
And that it could be possible within a year, or one year, some of these priorities could
be met. I haven’t seen that since I’ve been on the Council, in dealing with this subject
matter. for someone to actually come forward and say, look these are the priorities
and we could probably meet them within a year or a year. So that was... thank you for
that. Giving, at least in my mind, some light at the end of the tunnel. The other
aspect that I would most likely be concerned about is... and I’m gonna segue that into
the.. .you mention in.. .it. this project should inspire confidence. And right now as I sit
here as the Chair, I’m not inspired with what I have seen in documents and what I
have requested from FOM and their Executive Officer. I am not inspired. In fact, I... at
this point, am very reserved to even go forward with funding. And even recommended
.

.
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to Mr. Hokama. So I thank you, Dr. Klieger, in inspiring, at least giving me hope that
there is a chance or a possibility that this thing could come together. And so I feel
better. You giving this presentation and you being here. And in... and I would hope
that my Members on the Committee would agree with me that somehow this has to
happen. And it’s on our watch. And this is our watch. And we’ve gotta be able to
work together with all entities; FOM, you, the State. And so if this Committee has to
put it together and bring everyone on this floor, and have this kind of dialogue, then
it’s gonna have to happen, that way. Because it seems like the dialogue is not
happening outside of this Chamber. So I’m more than willing to keep having these
meetings so that we, the State, the County, and FOM, can come together and
collaborate on the air so there could be transparency right there as well. But
something has to be done with leadership on the excavation site. So that being said,
Dr. Klieger had mentioned that a part of this whole process is dealing with neighbors.
And the neighbors that this project is with is Lahaina Restoration. And they have a lot
of experience in what they do.
And it could possibly be a... another party or
stake... another party that would have stake in this type of project. So we have Theo
Morrison that is here. That could talk about... a little bit about what they’re doing in
the restoration. And what she could possibly add... as the Lahaina Restoration, could
possibly add to this project. And we’re just brainstorming at this point. And so I’d
like to turn over the floor to Theo Morrison.
MS. MORRISON:
Aloha, my name is Theo Morrison, Executive Director of Lahaina
Restoration Foundation. I’m really not in a position to talk about Friends of, you
know, the whole Mokuu1a project, today. I can tell you what Lahaina Restoration
does.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay.
MS. MORRISON: It’s very different. ‘Cause we deal with buildings as opposed to sites
underground. And we’ve never dealt with anything as big as what Mokuula.. friends
of Mokuula are dealing with. So we’ve been around for 54 years. And we basically
restore and interpret, preserve the historic buildings, culture, et cetera, of Lahaina.
We restrict ourselves to Lahaina. And when we got started, it was actually Pioneer
Mill that helped fund us in the beginning. And then we were very lucky to receive, as
a gift, the whole Baldwin Home complex.
So that include the whole corner of
Dickenson and Front Street. And there’s three buildings on that site. Although there
used to be four. And then the Pioneer Mill actually helped fund that restoration. So
that was kind of our basis. We got a really good start from that. And then Pioneer
Mill general managers were our... Keith Tester, was one of the major movers and
shakers and he was our Board President. His wife was also our Board President. So
there’s a really.., a very strong financial business type of structure at Lahaina
Restoration Foundation. So we’re very secure on our mission and what we need to do.
But we also look very closely at the financial means of how to do that. But we
have.. .we take a very long-term approach. So for example in the ‘SOs the Seamen’s
Hospital Building, was up for sale. Or else.. .1 have.. .maybe it wasn’t up for sale, but
.
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we offered to buy it. And for $18,000 the property was for sale. And the building was
actually a pile of rubble, because the... they had built condominiums behind it and the
entire rock structure had fallen down. However, we had the drawings of the original
building and what we did was we... 18.. .it cost 18,000 but that was very a lot of money
for us at the time. So we worked with an architect and we gave him a lease for 20
years of the building at no cost. And he was.. .his. .what he was obligated to do was
rebuild the building according to those drawings. They’re called HABS drawings. And
so he did that and after that he had his office there and he rented it out and after 20
years, it reverted back to Lahaina Restoration Foundation. So what we have now, 20
years later.. and I should also mention that when this deal was put together, the
executive director at the time, wasn’t even going to be there in 20 years. That’s not
like a requirement like it’s... didn’t necessarily happen on his watch. But so after 20
years, the building, completely restored building comes back to Lahaina Restoration
and we rent it out as office space. So Lahalna Restoration now has, you know, a
source of income, business, in this case, it’s Old Lahaina Luau, has a wonderful office
property. The town has a, you know, a new restored building and it’s a win, win, win
for everybody. So those are the kind of projects we try to do. And we just completed
another project. This was one of my projects. On Prison Street and it was a
plantation home that was gonna be torn down. ‘Cause the family didn’t need the
home, they want to keep the property so they were gonna tear it down. We went there
to see if we could collect door knobs and window frames, and stuff like that. Turns
out, we inherited the house. But it wasn’t.. .we didn’t buy the house. We just got a
24-year lease on the house. We restored the house with our own money. For.. .it was
about $120,000 to restore the house. We put in a local family that’s living there now.
And they pay us rent, and when all the money comes back to us, which is about 6
years, we’ll turn it into a educational center for plantation life for children and perhaps
for visitors or for perhaps for reunions for Lahaina Luna High School. We haven’t
quite figured that out yet. But... and then at the end of 24 years, the family can either
just take it back and they’ll have a house. Or they can extend our lease and we can
keep doing our program. They can sell it and we have the first right to buy it. Or
someone else can buy it. But at the end of the day, it totally works for us. It works for
the community, and then we have funds to go on to the next project. So that’s sort of
how we approach things is try to. very kind of creative financing for everything that
we do so we can keep doing more of those types of things.
.

.

.

.

CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. So... I guess the reason why I asked Lahaina Restoration to be here
is to get a different perspective. They’re one of the few that really think outside the
box in,.. on generating revenue. And I wanted to, you know, kinda maybe pick
her. pick their brains and see if there are other ways that we can generate revenues
for this project. Ms. Crivello?
.

.

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you. Thank you, Theo, for being here. And I
appreciate all of your entities efforts to sustain. And, you know, like Mr. Chair said,
quite out of the box to sustain yourself. But do you receive any funds from the
County? If it’s through Parks or any kind of contract you have?
-
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MS. MORRISON: Yes we do. So we get funds for the events that we do. We did Lahaina
Plantation Days for eight years, I believe. And then we have events at the Wo Hing
Museum.
So we get those funds for those through the Office of Economic
Development, through the HTA. We have those funds. We also have.. .we have.. .we’ve
been getting, since the 1980s, I think, it’s called the Groundskeeping Grant. And we
clean up all the parks and public spaces in Lahaina through Parks Department. We
get that. And then the current project that, I’m happy to say that is almost ready to
start, the Harborfront Project, that’s also a grant through the Parks Department.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So on the average, just from County, you know, but

--

MS. MORRISON: Well these...
COUNCILMEMBER CR1VELLO: --not.. .it doesn’t look like it’s just a... give me a grant, it looks
like it’s
--

MS. MORRISON: No these are all program...
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --working grants.
MS. MORRISON: They’re program grants.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah. Right.
MS. MORRISON: They don’t fund us. They just fund the program. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So about how much does that come up to?
MS. MORRISON: Well the OED grants, that was about 45,000 but this coming year.. .we’re
not doing Plantation Days anymore so it’s just gonna be 20 for 2016. The Parks
Groundskeeping Grant is 8.. .700 and... gosh I forget.. .1 have to send that to you.
Totally forgot that. Unless Kaala knows. And then they.. .no it’s.. .yeah. .no, it’s a
185,000 for the Parks Groundskeeping Grant. And the Harborfront Grant for that
project is 7.. .phase one.. .is 750,000.
.

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Seven-hundred-fifty-thousand. Okay.
MS. MORRISON: There’s no.. .we don’t charge overhead for our
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Right. Right.
MS. MORRISON: --out of any of these programs.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No I was just, you know, it... and like you said, your
concentration is on restoring buildings.
MS. MORRISON: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: And, you know, you are able to get private funding. You are
able to raise money and sustain it. And at the same time, county... do you also get any
kind of State grants too?
MS. MORRISON: We have in the past.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay.
MS. MORRISON: State Foundation, that’s nothing really major. We did get a major grant
from the National Marine Sanctuary Foundation. Which we used to totally redo the
entire inside of the Old Lahaina Courthouse. Which is actually on State property,
executive order to the County. So that was again where we got the funding and we
put it right into a public building. And none of that funding went to us, as a
organization. 3ut it was such a great project, that we were more than happy
--

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I

--

MS. MORRISON: --to do that.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --recognize that and I appreciate it.
MS. MORRISON: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: You know, I just I think like your harbor restoration or
whatever you’re going to be doing there is great. So we have different phases right?
MS. MORRISON: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So phase one is 750,000. I guess I’ve just, you know,
agreeing with your out of the box way to raise monies. As well as contributions from
County government, or whether it’s State or Federal government, but I just want to
thank you for your work.
MS. MORRISON: Okay. Well I should point out too that our parking lot is one of our major
sources of funds. And that wasn’t planned, way back when they got that property in
the ‘60s. ‘Cause it wouldn’t have been feasible back then. But it’s one of those things
that kind of evolved. So we’re always just looking at.. .yeah, it’s very important to
be.. .if you’re nonprofit, you still have to make money if you want to keep doing your
mission.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Right. Thank you.
MS. MORRISON: Sure.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you. How much do you make off of your parking?
MS. MORRISON: A lot.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Does that all go to the restoration of the buildings?
MS. MORRISON: It covers.. .yeah. It covers operations and goes for our projects too.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Thank you. Members, I don’t have any other questions and if, you
don’t mind, I would like to defer this matter.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No objections.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Yeah.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Ms. Cochran?
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Thank you. Well I have just some follow-ups and I wanna just first
Your opening
say that I completely, completely concur with your sentiments.
comments in regards to perhaps, you know, retaining Dr. Klieger here for his services
and expertise for this County. And possibly looking at the concession and seeing
some kind of restriction on those monies for that particular type of service or
something. So I know that is up for discussion. So I just want to say I’m really
excited to hear you state that and that I’m on board for us to work through and see
where that can lead. And also understanding the importance of neighbors and having
everyone involved. And you mentioned. and so neighbor being Lahaina Restoration
Foundation and their involvement. And thank you, Theo, for all the work you do for
Lahaina. And as you stated, you know, you’ve created this model for others to follow
suit and be sustainable. And, you know, to fund yourselves and also garner, levy, you
know, leverage the monies that you make and the monies that we give you and other
entities do. So thank you for that. But neighbors, meaning immediate too. Because I
think in a lot of our discussion and even through testifiers, thanking Ms. Taomoto
and, you know, Tanya Lee-Grieg, to be there on the ground with everyone and pretty
much, you know, leading by the hand on the site and explaining firsthand what is
going on. And, you know, Salvation Army, right there. You have actually homeowners
off on the corner on Shaw. They want to be involved. They want to understand what’s
happening. You have of course Walola Church, Lahaina Hongwanji, Alano Club, Na
Aikane. So, you know, these are your direct neighbors abutting this project that is so
significant and all this and we really want to see it going. But I’ll tell you, it sure will
.
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go a lot smoother, a lot easier, and in collaboration and support. and be supportive if
all these people are brought into that conversation. So, Chair, I love the fact that you
said that if it takes us all sitting here, on this floor, face to face talking, then so be it.
‘Cause I truly believe that is what needs to occur, and it has not. And I think that
simple act of doing a little walking around site inspection with everyone at the table I
mean moved mountains. Let me tell you. So I want to thank, yes Department. I was
just curious though in regards to our... and this might go to maybe Director Kaala, but
it’s in regards to parks or County property overall. And noticing, you know, we went
there to see the new fencing. But I do recall seeing a removal of some old fencing
there and how does that process work? Because I’m looking at County property and
how does that occur. You know, what... I guess there’s a thing of disposal of County
property and there’s a certain process you need to go through. And, you know...
.

CHAIR GUZMAN:
you

Okay.

.

I think we have our,.. the... our Director here on the floor. Would

--

VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Yeah.
CHAIR GUZMAN: --mind responding?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair? Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Ms. Cochran

--

VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Yeah.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: --so as far as any kind of donations or disposal of any equipment that
needs to be logged in. There is a form to fill out. And nothing should be given away or
sold or disposed of, without the proper forms that is given from Administration.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Okay. And so was that done then? ‘Cause I saw some portions of
the old fencing that used to be around the park where we all played at recess and stuff
gone.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Department?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair? The Department has given away nothing. Not from our
knowledge of anything from our standpoint that was given away or disposed of from
the Mokuula area.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Okay.
-
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MR. BUENCONSEJO: Was it something that was.. .we took away or...
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Yeah. Well actually during our walk around, it was notated by
Ms. Feiteira that it had been brought to public and said they had some fencing I
guess, to give or something. So I just was following up because I know it’s truly
County property.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: And not any personal property of anyone.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Director?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, that wouldn’t come from... so if it was given or directed for the
Mokuula Board, or from Blossom, maybe you can speak with her, but there was no
transmittal to our Department whatsoever.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: So if that was something

--

VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Thank you.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: --that happened then, that’s something we need to talk story with as
well.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Okay. And I guess that could be part of the discussion in the next
item, Chair. And thank you, Director.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Actually that the fencing would only be in this item ‘cause

--

VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Oh okay.
CHAIR GUZMAN: --the next item is purely the concession, the parking.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Okay. Well that gives me answers and of course leads to more
questions but I believe we do have an item specifically about fencing and I pulled the
contract to put into Mr. Hokama’s Committee also. So he’s willing to pull that up. So
I think maybe where more in-depth discussion could be had.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Would you like...
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Or Director has...
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MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair? Yeah. Just real quick. If I’m kind of getting the story now, I
think that was a. we did get a phone call, I believe after the fact. If that’s the same
fencing. I’m not too exactly sure to what extent of the fencing. I did speak with
Ms. Feiteira or with Blossom, as well.. .well same person. Regarding what we did here
of possible having someone go and take fencing and we did let her know that that is
not the protocol ,that cannot happen.
. .

VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: So if again, I don’t know if that’s the same thing we’re talking about
and so.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Is that something similar that you’re talking about?
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: It seems but I. .there’s just one section that’s been removed and
kinda happen to see rolls of it down the street.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Okay. Yeah. Like... Chair? I, again, just from what we were told after
the fact, after it was given away we got.. .I’m not sure exactly how I found out about it,
but I did give her a call to find out if that was exactly what happened. And I did warn
her that, you know, there’s no permission for anyone anyone to give any Parks’
property away. At that point it was already given to a certain person. I don’t want
talk on the air. We wanna talk story after.
CHAIR GUZMAN: It... that probably sounds something like executive session.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yes. We...
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: I do have the name.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: And it is...
CHAIR GUZMAN: It sounds like there’s property...
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR GUZMAN:
to--

County property theft or something like that going on.

VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Yeah. And that’s fine, Chair.

-

43

-

So I don’t want

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, ENERGY, AGRICULTURE,
AND RECREATION COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
March 1, 2016

CHAIR GUZMAN: --go into any of that.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: I just wanted to know what the process of disposal of County
property. So that if that discussion needs to be had, in executive, then more than
happy to go there to get to the bottom and to avoid such situations.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Airight, why don’t we... I’ll.. .what well.. .why don’t we.. .111.. .1 will draft a
letter to Parks to get more details. And then from there if there needs to be an
executive session, then I’ll reagendize this particular item and we’ll go in specifically
for that to speak to our attorney of possibilities of alleged property confiscation or theft
or things like that. It sounds like it, that things were taken that were not, you know,
approved, you know, officially of doing so. But I’m not gonna get into any of that on
the floor.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Yeah. And okay.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Alright. Well that’s fine, Chair. However you want to take care of
that.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: But thank you.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Thank you. So, Members, without any... oh, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Sorry.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Just when I’m about to.

.

.

(inaudible).

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You were about ready to go. The question I have and it may be
at a at a later time for this thing. Things that, you know, in working on this when I
was in the Administration
--

CHAIR GUZMAN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --there were some thing that they were going to do like move
the parking lot and all that. Those were plans that probably have to happen after the
EIS [sic] is all done. So maybe we can talk about that later. ‘Cause I don t’ think
--

CHAIR GUZMAN: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --we’re to that step right now.
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CHAIR GUZMAN: Where are you... are you referring...

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well I’m just wondering if they’re still, because she mentioned
that they found the edge
--

CHAIR GUZMAN: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --right at the parking lot. So maybe they don’t have to move
the parking lot but I think they would. So the plans...
CHAIR GUZMAN: Let’s talk about that really quick.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So are the plans still there to move the parking lot? And the
problem with moving the parking lot was that they’d have to acquire, potentially, the
Salvation Army, or go right next to it. So there were some logistical problems there
and I don’t know if they’ve worked those out yet. And I was just curious.
CHAIR GUZMAN:
question?

Does anyone on the panel... can speak on behalf of that or answer that

MS. LEE-GRIEG: I can only speak to what has been identified within the parking lot. And
if. and that we do believe that we found the perimeter, the southern perimeter of the
island, within the area that is now the parking lot. If ultimately the vision is to expose
the entire perimeter, then indeed the parking lot would have to be moved at some
point in time to be able to accomplish that goal.
. .

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah. And that was way back when, was the whole thing was
going to be uncovered and restored as much as possible. But now with all the new
findings, I can see how maybe you don’t have to expose everything and still might be
able to keep... ‘cause and the only reason I’m asking, is ‘cause the parking lot
is... should be their main form of income.
So, to lose that parking lot, then
they’re... how are you gonna fund that?
CHAIR GUZMAN: Anyone on the panel?
MS. LEE-GRIEF: Can I just...
CHAIR GUZMAN: Mr.... Dr. Klieger? Oh, I’m sorry. We1l go with the.. .I’m sorry. Wendy?
MS. TAOMOTO: Yeah. So.. .Wendy Taomoto again, so the parking lot area as it currently sits
is on a portion of the island. And through the AIS, it was determined that the
causeway is also under the parking lot. The causeway being the entrance to the
island from Front Street way. Which makes it. and that’s why we’re being hesitant to
say what the plans are until the AIS is finalized. The field investigations and some
consultations with SHPD is completed to draw any conclusions on whether the
. .
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parking lot needs to be removed or not. And this also goes to the island also
impacting the makai side Salvation Army property. And whether that needs to take
place in what... and in what priority in the project that that needs to occur. I’ve
already had discussions with Salvation Army last month. It’s March today, so last
month. So we’re just beginning to have these discussions with Salvation Army, but
that discussion.., the finalization of when it needs... they need to relocate if we move
forward with restoring the portion of the island affecting their property. They realize
that it’s like.., they expect to move in the long term but in the near term is their
relocation necessary? In the... you know, in the real near term. And so we’re just
working on finding appropriate sites for them to relocate to, getting those sites to them
for consideration. And just keeping a dialogue with the Salvation Army I think is
important. To understand how a relocation can impact also their operations and their
ability to serve the community. And so that’s what we initiated last month with the
Mayor. So similar to the parking lot and how it affects the impact of the revenue for
this project. I think we would like to wait until Tanya completes her AIS. And we can
maybe draw more definitive conclusions about the project, you know. Like I said we
found the causeway, which we thought wasn’t under the parking lot, and actually
closer to the pump station. And now it’s under the parking lot.
CHAIR GUZMAN: I see. Dr. Klieger, do you have any comments?
MR. KLIEGER: Yeah. Paul Klieger, I concur with these last two comments. I think that
although we have a very strong vision that the southern portion of the island is under
the parking lot, it also probably goes into Salvation Army considerably, and then turns
and heads north. We need to think of that within the context of how much of the
island is going to be exposed. What our vision is for the end run. And it’s a cost
benefit kind of ratio. The southern portion, i.e. that parking lot, again was not part of
crown land, that was the Waiokama lands, that went to the Shaw family. So that is a
later 19th century, early 20th century portion which may be not considered quite as
important or significant, as the royal palace and the tomb are. So that’s a discussion
that we really need to make. And again I agree after the AIS review process is
completed.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yeah. And that comes back to what Ms. Cochran was saying, was like
what era are we going to be focusing on? You know, and that’s a.. .you know, under
the... it sounds as though the structures or the restoration portion of it that’s
underneath the parking lot is in a different era as opposed to others, sections.
MR. KLIEGER: Yes in fact we really don’t know to what extent the southern portion of
Moku’ula was used by the King. We think it was more of a utilitarian area perhaps
where food was grown or prepared. But he lived up on the north part of the island
close to the tomb. That we know on the basis of oral.. .well documented history. So
it’s a big question. We don’t know as much about the southern portion at all.
CHAIR GUZMAN: It.. .yeah. So it sounds as though there’s a lot of, you know, priorities that
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need to be sorted out. So I think this is a good starting point, I believe. And I thank
everyone for being here today. It’s a... it’s been a long afternoon. But if there’s any
other objections or any other questions. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No. Nope. No.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Without any objections, I’d like to defer this matter.
COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR QUZMAN: Okay. Thank you.
ACTION:

EAR-2

DEFER.

LEASE AND LICENSE OF COUNTY-CONTROLLED PARCELS TO FRIENDS OF
MOKUULA, INC. (LAHAINA) (CC 11-304)

CHAIR QUZMAN: Members, I know we’re getting close to 4:30 and I really wanted to get to
this next item which is the item EAR-2, but I don’t want to spend.. .1 believe that we’re
going to need at least an hour or an hour and a half. And we’ve gone through some
really major hours this week. And so I don’t want to do this to you guys. I will.. .if
without objection, defer this last item. Because we’re gonna need to go into executive
session for this last item. And I would rather that we do this when we’re all fresh.
And I know we’re on empty tanks
--

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: And you have a...
CHAIR GUZMAN: --from yesterday.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Chair, and you have a fuller quorum than just us.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Yes. Right. We are bare quorum. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I would just like to, you know, see if there’s any way we can
schedule it so that that happens first. Because the folks that have been here
--

CHAIR GUZMAN: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --sitting here, are CPAs and they’re actually in the middle of tax
season. So they’ve lost a half a day, so if we can make sure that their time is a little
less...
CHAIR GUZMAN: I agree. I agree.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR GUZMAN: And I didn’t know

--

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR GUZMAN: --that Ms. Blossom was going to bring the tax people

--

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, okay.
CHAIR GUZMAN: --her accountants.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR GUZMAN: ‘Cause we had requested letters in response

--

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Gotcha.
CHAIR GUZMAN: --and we were not getting responses back. So when I.. .honestly, I.. .this
was... today was the first, right when I walked on the floor, it was the first time that I
heard that she was bringing
--

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Gotcha.
CHAIR GUZMAN: --the CPAs. So

--

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR GUZMAN: --had I known that, I would have pulled them out of the order on the

--

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR GUZMAN: --order on the agenda.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No worries. I just...
CHAIR GUZMAN: But since I didn’t have the notice ahead of time, I didn’t think it was fair
for
--

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Sure.
CHAIR GUZMAN: --those who were on the first item to go after.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
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CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you. But I will schedule it on the first portion of the agenda the
next time around, ‘cause we need to go into executive session on this one. Okay?
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR GUZMAN: So without objections...
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No objections, let’s go.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Ms. Cochran?
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: No. Just wondering do you have a date certain?
CHAIR GUZMAN: I don’t have a date certain

--

VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Oh okay.
CHAIR GUZMAN: --because we are going into Budget soon and so I have... I think all of us
have only about one or two committees left?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: I have two.
CHAIR QUZMAN: Before we go into Budget.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Two.
CHAIR GUZMAN: But I will try to make adjustments in my master agenda to accommodate,
so that at least we can get this, whatever needs to be discussed be done prior to
Budget.
Because I think what we need to do is start looking at different
sources... different funding vehicles. Just like Lahaina Restoration they have, you
know, 750,000 on these base programs. Which I really think we should start doing
instead of purely looking at parking concession. You know, I think we should be
looking at other program type budgeting for this project. But anyways.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Yeah. And so.. .yeah. And thank you, Chair. Just so long as we
can.. .1 think it’s important that we do get through this prior to this Budget session.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Right. Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: ‘Cause there could be
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CHAIR GUZMAN: That is a... that’s a requirement.

VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: --considerations and we need to vet it.
CHAIR GUZMAN: And I think that’s where

--

VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: So very good.
CHAIR GUZMAN: --the executive sessions gonna come into. And so it will really allow us to
have a lot of the questions that we have answered. And then from there we can move
forward into Budget.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR GUZMAN: And see how well.. .what we can do to find that vehicle to fund this project.
But anyways
--

VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Thank you.
CHAIR GUZMAN: --I am very happy to ask this last question. Without objections, I would
like to defer this last item.
VICE-CHAIR COCHRAN: Chair, no objections.
CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Thank you. The item EAR-2 shall be deferred.
ACTION:

DEFER.
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CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay, Members, that concludes our items on today’s agenda. Committee
is adjourned.
(gavel).
.

ADJOURN:

.

.
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